1952

Ogden City v. Public Service Commission of Utah et al : Brief of Plaintiff

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This is an action by Ogden City to obtain a review of an order of the defendant Public Service Commission authorizing the defendant Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Company (hereinafter sometimes called the "Company") to make effective its "Second Revised Sheet 5 of its Utah Intrastate General Exchange Tariff, Section 20, 'General Regulations,' " filed with the Commission under date of December 19, 1951. (Record 34).

That order was granted upon the application (R 1-3) of the Company and over the protest (R. 136-139; 38-45) of the City.

The so-called "Tariff" which was thus approved by the Commission, so far as pertinent, reads as follows:

"1. Rate schedules of the Telephone Company, in Utah, do not include any portion of any sales, excise, franchise, or occupation tax, costs of furnishing service without charge, or similar taxes or impositions presently or that may hereafter be levied by the Federal Government, the State of Utah, or any political subdivision or taxing authority.

"2. Insofar as practicable, any such taxes, levies impositions or charges presently or hereafter levied may be billed by the Company to its exchange customers on a prorata basis, with the amount thereof added to the bill for service to the Company's subscribers in the area wherein such taxes, impositions or other charges are or shall be levied against the Telephone Company."
(R. 3 and 25).

For a clear understanding of the situation it is necessary at this point toturn back to the time when the Company's franchise to use the City's streets was negotiated and granted, and to consider some other facts in the background.

The franchise in question was negotiated and granted in 1941 to run for a period of 25 years, or until 1966. (R. 125-127; Exhibits 3 and 4, R. 21 and 22, admitted R. 152-3). It must be presumed that this franchise contract was submitted to and approved by the Commission before it was accepted and executed by the Company as provided in Section 8 of the franchise ordinance, as required by Section 76-4-24 (2) U.C.A.

By that franchise the City granted the Company the right to use its streets for pole lines, cables, etc. In consideration thereof the Company agreed to pay the City annually an amount equal to 1% of the local exchange revenues derived from telephones in Ogden City and to provide the City certain so-called "free service" during the term of the franchise. (Ibid., and R. 125-6).

In those negotiations it was understood by the Company's representative that the City Commissioners who represented the City acted in a representative capacity for the citizens and inhabitants of Ogden, so that the inhabitants were in effect the real parties in interest. (R. 127).

The Company's representative (R. 125) recognized that the franchise tax (or fee) is imposed upon the Company and not directly upon its customers (as in the case of excise and sales taxes) although the money to pay all taxes and other obligations must in the last analysis be found in the consideration paid for services furnished by the Company. (R. 127-129).

Until the present time all municipal franchise fees and taxes always have been absorbed in the general expense of the Company. (R. 1; 100; 110; 118; 140; 26).

They were, with the exception of an increase in the Salt Lake City tax, included in the overall expenses of the Company in the fixing of the presently existing rates of the Company in the Commission's case No. 3596, in which the Order was issued on August 10, 1951. (R. 100; 110; 26; 118).

A number of the cities and towns in the state have imposed or exacted sales taxes, excise taxes, franchise fees, occupational taxes and/or free services from the Company. (R. 110-115; Exhibit 2). The Company, or at least its Utah Manager, Mr. Sawyer, regards all these taxes and free services as essentially the same (R. 109), a legal position with which the City cannot agree.

Except in the case of the franchise fee paid and free services rendered Ogden City for the use of its streets, the nature of these taxes was never specified, and the Record is silent as to whether or not the sums paid other municipalities were franchise fees in the nature of rental for the special use and occupation of City streets (as in Ogden's case) or occupational or license taxes imposed on the Company's and other businesses or on the Company's business alone for purely revenue purposes, or were sales taxes on the sale of the Company's services, or excise taxes imposed on some other phase of the Company's business activities.

At any rate the amount of the taxes, and the percentage which the amount bears to the gross revenues of the Company varies from city to city. Currently the Ogden franchise fee is 1% plus free services amounting, on the basis of current revenues, to .44 of 1% of the gross receipts from local exchange revenues derived from telephones within the city limits. (R. 115, Exhibit 2; 125).

The transfer of the burden of all these charges and free services to, and the recovery of the amount of the tax and the retail value of the free services from local consumers within the municipalities involved will result in an increase in the Company's net earnings from 5.26% to 5.47% of capital invested, or an increase of .21% of

net earnings after taxes. (R. 118-119).

The existing telephone rate schedules group towns by size, according to the number of telephones on the exchange, and a rate is fixed for telephones in each group, upon the assumption that the value of a telephone to a subscriber varies directly with the number of phones which can be reached therefrom without toll charge. (R. 129-130). However, it is noteworthy in this case that geographically *the boundaries of the urban base rate, or "city service" area does not follow the city limits*; there are subscribers outside the city limits who get urban service and pay the regular urban charge, without any premium.

Moreover, neither the applicant Company nor anyone else presented any evidence whatsoever proving or tending to prove that the rates, based on the historical practice approved in the general rate case just last year, were in any way "unjust, unreasonable, discriminatory or preferential, or in anywise in violation of any provisions of law" as is required by Section 76-4-4, U.C.A. before the Commission may act. On the contrary, the Company's only witness testified on cross examination that he "could not say" as to whether or not the rural lines "pay their way" upon the rates in an equal proportion to the city or base rate areas, that the Company did not attempt to define its operations that fine on an exchange, but develops an over-all cost to furnish service in a particular exchange area, and does not break down the cost of furnishing service in the rural as compared to the city. (R. 134-135).

Again (R. 143), the witness Mr. Sawyer testified that it might be true that in a given exchange that the

Company actually has to operate at a loss; that the Company doesn't attempt to define areas around the state or within exchanges where the cost of operation might be in excess of the rates.

And again, he testified that he had no figures to submit as to what proportion of the earnings come from the several exchanges, *or whether they are bearing their fair share in the overall picture.* (R. 149-150; Emphasis added).

It is, of course, admitted that in the Ogden area (as an example) *every* phone call from the rural area, and from the urban base area outside the city limits must travel through the Ogden Exchange and along the city streets pursuant to the franchise granted by the City. To that extent *every* subscriber from outside the city limits uses and directly benefits from the franchise. On the other hand *not* every call from a city phone travels over a country road; calls between city subscribers travel only over city streets, and there is no automatic compensating use of country roads. (R. 133). This obvious discrimination is enhanced by the fact that the city taxpayer pays ad valorem taxes to maintain the country roads.

The existing discrimination, if any, is against the city and in favor of the rural subscriber, instead of *vice versa*, as was assumed by the Company and the Commission.

Although the counties of the State (except Washington County) are all furnished similar free services, no proposal or order was made to bill the cost of these to the telephone users in the several areas involved. (R. 121; 25; 34).

Upon the filing of the Company's application, the Commission, pursuant to Section 76-6-12 (1), U.C.A., suspended the operation of the proposed Second Revised Sheet 5, and entered upon an investigation of the matter without formal pleadings, and held the hearing at which the evidence disclosed the facts as above outlined.

Upon the closing of the hearing the Commission made its Report, Findings and Order approving the proposed recovery of all franchise fees and license taxes, so far as practicable, from subscribers within the respective municipalities. (R. 24-37). It apparently found as a fact in substance that the present practice of treating the franchise fees and license taxes as a general expense of the Company resulted in "some discrimination" against non-city subscribers in the applicable rates and charges for telephone service, and that the practice should be discontinued. (R. 28-29; 31). It also found that customers living outside the cities contribute a part of the cost of these taxes and impositions, while receiving little or no direct benefit therefrom. (R. 29).

The Commission further found that the City's contention that its franchise contract was entered into with the intent that the funds to pay the city for the rights acquired by the Company would come from the general income of the Company is not supported by the evidence, and that the application of the proposed tariff would not affect the City's constitutional rights, or impair its contracts. (R 33)

A petition for rehearing was filed with the Commis-

sion, setting out in detail the points to be hereinafter argued. The petition was denied, and the City thereupon brought this action to obtain a review of the Commission's proceedings.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

1. The Commission unlawfully imposed upon the protesting city, rather than upon the applicant company, the burden of proof in the preceeding below.

2. There is no evidence to support the findings of the Commission to the effect that the present practice of treating the franchise fees as a general expense of the company results in some discrimination against non-city subscribers in the applicable rates and charges for telephone service.

3. There is no evidence to support the finding of the Commission to the effect that the Company's customers outside the cities (including Ogden City) contribute a part of the franchise fees and the special taxes, while receiving little or no direct benefit therefrom.

4. The finding of the Commission, to the effect that there is no evidence that the City's franchise contract was entered into with the intent that the funds to pay the city for the rights thereby acquired by the Company would come from the general income of the Company, is contrary to all of the competent evidence in the proceeding, and contrary to law.

5. The Order of the Commission impairs the obliga-

tion of the Company's franchise contract with the City and its inhabitants in violation of Article I, Section 10, Clause 1 of the Constitution of the United States, and of Article I, Section 18 of the Constitution of Utah.

6. The Order of the Commission, by authorizing a specific and arbitrary set off, releases and extinguishes, at least in part, the indebtedness, liability, and obligation of the Company to the City under its franchise contract, in violation of Article VI, Sections 27 and 29, of the Constitution of Utah.

7. The Order of the Commission is void and beyond the powers of the Commission granted by the legislature, and is a void attempt to exercise power to supervise and interfere with municipal money and property and to levy municipal taxes and perform municipal functions, which powers the legislature cannot validly grant the Commission under Article VI, Section 29 and Article XII, Section 8, of the Constitution of Utah.

8. The Order of the Commission by its terms and in effect unlawfully transforms a lawful and proper franchise fee exacted from the Company into an unlawful sales, purchase or use tax on the user of telephone service, in violation of Article VI, Section 29, Article XI, Section 5(a), and Article XIII, Section 5, of the Constitution of Utah.

ARGUMENT

POINT I. *The Commission unlawfully imposed upon the protesting city, rather than upon the applicant company, the burden of proof in the proceeding below.*

It is conceded that the proposal to charge the franchise fees to the telephone using inhabitants of the cities involved will result in an increase in cost of telephone service to the inhabitants, and an increase in net income to the Company. Under these circumstances and under the provisions of Section 76-6-12(1), U.C.A., 1943, pursuant to which the proceeding was held (R. 4), the alteration in the established practice cannot be made "except upon a showing before the Commission and a finding by the Commission that such increase is justified."

Furthermore, under the provisions of Section 76-4-4(1), U.C.A., 1943, relating to the powers of the Commission to regulate rates, regulations, practices, etc., of utilities, the Commission has no power to order or authorize a change in a rate or practice unless substantial evidence is first presented to prove, and the Commission finds, that the existing rates or practices are inherently "unjust, unreasonable, discriminatory or preferential," or in some way in violation of some law.

In the case of

Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph
Company vs. Public Service Commission
105 Utah 230, 142 Pac. 2nd 873; Rehear-
ing denied 105 Utah 266, 271; 145 Pac.
2nd 790, 792,

this court held that an order requiring intrastate rates to be reduced to the level of intrastate rates is invalid unless based on evidence "calculated to show that existing intrastate rates were inherently unreasonable." Obviously there is no presumption that existing rates or

practices are unreasonable; the proponents of a proposed change must prove that as a fact. In the absence of such evidence there is obviously a presumption that existing practices are reasonable and non-discriminatory. This is especially true where, as here, the Commission, on August 10, 1951, less than seven (7) months before, had found and determined in its case No. 3596, that the existing practices were fair and reasonable, as required by law. (R. 26).

This is the rule elsewhere. In the case of

Birmingham Electric vs. Alabama Public
Service Commission, 47 So. 2d 455, (Ala.)

it was held that in a statutory proceeding wherein the utility attempts to designate an increased rate which becomes effective unless suspended by the Commission, the burden of establishing the basis for the increase is on the utility.

And in

Tulsa Tribune Company vs. Oklahoma Na-
tural Gas Company, 261 Pac. 213 (Okl.)

the court held that the burden rests on one seeking to establish special rates to show that the rates set by the Corporation Commission are unjust and unreasonable. See also

Atlantic City Sewerage vs. Board of Public
Utility Commissioners, 26 A. 2d 71, aff'd.
29 A. 2nd 850 (N.J.L.)

and

New York Edison Company vs. Maltbie, 279
N.Y.S. 949.

In this case the burden of proof was on the company

to establish (1) that the existing practice of including franchise fees in the Company's over-all costs was unreasonable, unjust and discriminatory, and to establish (2) that the proposed change would correct that discrimination.

Both the Company and the Commission *assumed*, without any evidence to support them, that both of these facts were true in February, although not true in the preceding August. The Commission *argued* in its "Report and Findings" (R. 28-29) that "Because of the Nature of these license, occupation, and franchise taxes and the manner in which the Company has spread the expense. . . . to all of the telephone users of the state, it *becomes apparent* that some discrimination results . . ." (Emphasis added.) However, as disclosed by the Record, summarized in the Statement of Facts, and hereinafter more fully discussed, there was nothing presented to show the extent of such discrimination, or whether such discrimination was, in the over-all picture, against or in favor of the inhabitants of Ogden City or of any other municipality. The Company's witness just had no figures to present. *There was presented absolutely no basis for comparison.*

The making of the order in favor of the proponent Company under these circumstances is obviously tantamount to *presuming* the existence of these basic facts and placing the burden on the protestant city to disprove their existence. This, as has been shown, is contrary to law.

The position erroneously, and perhaps unconscious-

admitted that the corporation and its officers in this case acted for and represented its inhabitants who are the real parties in interest, and under the American rule, the third party beneficiary is recognized as the legal obligee. *Second*, no matter who is recognized as the obligee, *the obligation of the Company is impaired*. The City is entitled to look to its original obligor, and cannot be compelled to accept a novation with new obligors who will, as the Commission anticipates, immediately bring pressure and agitate for the cancellation of the obligation. *Third*, it is the established law of this state, and elsewhere, that *"a corporate entity may be entirely disregarded in order to reach and protect the real parties in interest, and to disclose the real transaction."*

Western Securities Co. v. Spiro, 62 Utah
623, 221 Pac. 856, Syllabus 5.

See also

18 C.J.S. "Corporations," section 6, pp. 376-377,

where it is said that:

"It is clear that a corporation is in fact a collection of individuals, and that the idea of the corporation as a legal entity or person apart from its members is a mere fiction of the law introduced for convenience in conducting the business in this privileged way. It is now well settled, as a general doctrine, that, when this fiction is urged to an intent not within its reason and purpose, it should be disregarded and the corporation considered as an aggregation of persons, both in equity and at law. . . . The courts will disregard the corporate fiction whenever its retention would

produce injustices and inequitable consequences.”

See also

62 C.J.S., pp. 68-69,
where it is said that a municipal corporation may, and frequently does act as agent for its citizens, and is regarded as a trustee for its inhabitants.

If ever there was a case where the corporate entity should be disregarded in the interests of justice, this is that case. The inhabitants of Ogden stand in grave danger of being unjustly deprived of the fruits of their grant of franchise privileges by the subterfuge of paying through their corporation, with their money, a debt beneficially owned by them. The corporate entity of their municipal corporation must not be permitted to stand between them and justice.

The Company's obligation to the City's inhabitants is impaired by the Commission's order.

As to the second objection raised by the Company to this point, we readily concede that it is a general rule that Municipal Corporations cannot claim, as against the state, the protection of the “impairment of obligations” clauses. There are two clear replies by way of which the City avoids this admitted rule.

The first has already been suggested. The real parties in interest here are the individual telephone-using inhabitants of Ogden, in whose behalf the City here appears. They are under no such disability, and it seems possible, from the clamor here, that the members of the

ly, taken by the Commission on this question of burden of proof is well indicated by its statement in its Report and Findings (R.30) that "The protestant, Ogden City, sought, among other things, to show that there is discrimination in rates construed on a state-wide basis. . . ." (Emphasis added.) On the contrary, Ogden City did not seek to show, or assume the burden of showing anything. It sought only to require the Company to assume its proper legal burden of showing that present state-wide rates are unreasonable and discriminatory as claimed by the Company and that, as further claimed by the Company, its proposed new tariff would cure the same.

This case is in principle identical with *Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Company vs. Public Service Commission*, supra. There the Commission, without supporting evidence, presumed that "there was no reasonable basis for any difference" between interstate and intrastate rates. This court struck down the order based on that presumption. In this case the Commission, without supporting evidence, presumed,

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