1952

Ogden City v. Public Service Commission of Utah et al : Brief of Defendant

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

We perceive but one issue in this case, namely whether just and nondiscriminatory practices require that the Company construct its rates so that, so far as practicable, money to discharge municipal levies shall be collected from its customers within the municipalities where such levies are imposed rather than from its customers on a state-wide basis. The Company will, however, undertake to deal with each of the Points relied upon by the plaintiff in its brief and will do so in the following argument under defendant's Points herein designated.

I.

THE EVIDENCE SUPPORTS THE COMMISSION'S FINDINGS THAT THE INCLUSION OF MUNICIPAL LEVIES IN THE COMPANY'S STATE-WIDE RATES IS AN UNJUST AND DISCRIMINATORY PRACTICE AND THAT SUCH PRACTICE SHOULD BE ABOLISHED BY THE COMPANY'S COLLECTING, SO FAR AS PRACTICABLE, MONEYS TO PAY SUCH LEVIES FROM ITS CUSTOMERS IN THE MUNICIPALITIES WHERE SUCH LEVIES ARE IMPOSED.

Under this point the Company will deal with the arguments advanced by plaintiff under its Points numbered 1, 2 and 3.

At the outset of its argument, the City, under its Point 1, appears to urge that the order of the Commission here under review is unlawful in that the Commission, by some step taken in the hearing before it, unlawfully cast the burden of proof on the City. *Mountain States Telephone and Telegraph Company v. Public Service Commission of Utah*, 105 Utah 230, 142 P. 2d 873, Rehearing denied 105 Utah 266, 145 P. 2d 790, is cited as an authority in point. That was a discrimination case initiated by the Commission, involving two rate schedules, namely, the intrastate toll rates of the Mountain States Company and the interstate joint toll rates of the Mountain States Company and the American Company and other associated Bell companies. At the hearing the Commission showed the differential in charges prevailing for like mileage under the two rates. The court held that such showing made out a prima facie case of discrimination and that the burden was then on the Mountain States Company to justify the differentials. We are unable to perceive how that decision bears upon the problem here under consideration. In the case at bar the Company must produce evidence upon which the Commission may find that the practice of recovery from its customers through state-wide rates of money with which to pay municipal levies is unjust and discriminatory. Actually, as the record will show, the Company assumed the burden and proved its case. If the City intends to complain of some informality in the procedure of the Commission, the answer to any such contention is found in Section 76-6-1, Utah Code Annotated 1943, which provides that

“All hearings, investigations and proceedings shall be governed by this chapter and by rules of

practice and procedure to be adopted by the public utilities commission; in the conduct thereof the technical rules of evidence need not be applied. No informality in any hearing, investigation or proceedings, or in the manner of taking testimony, shall invalidate any order, decision rule or regulation made, approved or confirmed by the commission."

and in *Gilmer v. Public Utilities Commission of Utah et al.*, 67 Utah 222, 247 Pac. 284, where, at page 238 of the Utah Report, the Court said:

"There is also some complaint that the order of the commission was irregular. If that were so, however, in view of the statute (section 4820, *supra*) it would not invalidate the order of the commission that is complained of here."

The City next contends that there is no evidence to support the findings of the Commission that unjust discrimination exists in the practice of the Company of collecting money with which to pay municipal levies from its customers on a state-wide basis. Defendants in nowise concede this contention of the City for there is, we believe, in Exhibit 2 and in the testimony of the witness Sawyer ample evidence to support the Commission's findings.

A determination of the question of the sufficiency of the evidence to support the Commission's findings requires at the outset a brief consideration of the controlling statutes and decisions of this Court. The controlling statute is, we believe, Section 76-6-16, Utah Code Annotated 1943, which provides in part that

"* * * No new or additional evidence may be introduced in the supreme court, but the

cause shall be heard on the record of the commission as certified by it. The review shall not be extended further than to determine whether the commission has regularly pursued its authority, including a determination of whether the order or decision under review violates any right of the petitioner under the constitution of the United States or of the state of Utah. *The findings and conclusions of the commission on questions of fact shall be final and shall not be subject to review. Such questions of fact shall include ultimate facts and the findings and conclusions of the commission on reasonableness and discrimination.* * * *

No good purpose could be served by citing the many cases which have construed this statute, for, as observed by this court in *Union Pacific R. Co. et al. v. Public Service Commission et al.*, 103 Utah 459, 135 P. 2d 915, at page 462 of the Utah Report,

“The rule is so well established as to require no citation of authority that the reviewing power of the court is confined to the questions as to whether the commission regularly pursued its authority, whether its findings are justified by the evidence, and whether its orders contravene any right under the Constitution of the United States or the Constitution of the State of Utah.”

There are, however, two cases from this Court dealing with the scope of review, which we believe are particularly helpful. These are the *St. John Station Case, Los Angeles & Salt Lake R. Co. v. Public Utilities Commission of Utah*, 80 Utah 455, 15 P. 2d 358, and the later case of *Los Angeles & Salt Lake R. Co. v. Public Utilities Commission et al.*, 81 Utah 286, 17 P. 2d 287.

In the *St. John Case* the court, at page 472 of the Utah Report said :

“* * * What we are really asked to review, therefore, is the question of the judgment of the commission as applied to the evidence. But we cannot like can the Supreme Court of New Mexico, substitute our judgment for the judgment of the commission. We must determine whether any reasonable mind could have come to the same judgment as the commission on the evidence controlled by the principles of law heretofore discussed. If there is any evidence upon which any reasonably judging mind could come to the same conclusion that the commission came to, then we must affirm the decision. * * *”

In the later case, at page 291 of the Utah Report, the court said :

“In the *St. John Station Case* we considered at length the scope of the inquiry which this court could entertain in a case of certiorari from the commission under section 4834 (now Sec. 76-6-16, *supra*). We held that we had no authority to determine from our own judgment whether, under the evidence, the agency should be discontinued, and thus put ourselves in the place of the commission, but we must determine whether any reasonable mind could come to the same judgment as the commission came to on the evidence controlled by the principles of law discussed in that opinion. If there is any evidence upon which any reasonable judging mind could come to the same conclusion that the commission came to, it would be our duty to affirm the decision of the commission.
* * *

So in the case at bar, the review extends to a consideration of the judgment of the commission as applied to the

evidence and the inquiry will be whether there is any evidence upon which any reasonably judging mind could come to the same conclusion that the commission came to. What then, is the record before us?

There is no essential dispute of facts. The facts were presented by the oral and documentary evidence of the witness Sawyer. Neither the City nor any party appearing in opposition introduced any evidence.

The Company, in meeting the problem presented by these municipal levies, might have (a) done nothing, (b) collected locally from its customers only amounts necessary to pay those levies imposed since its last general rate case, or (c) collected locally from its customers, so far as practicable, all moneys necessary to pay municipal levies. It discarded (a) because it believed that the time had come when circumstances necessitated a change in the practices previously employed. It discarded (b) because it considered that if it were correct in its basic premise of the discrimination in its present practice, simple justice required that the practice be completely removed and not removed only as to some customers and retained as to others (R. 176-77). The Company therefore determined to pursue course (c).

The facts are that for many years municipal levies were so nominal that they could have made no appreciable difference in rate schedules one way or another. In recent years they have been rising sharply in certain cities and towns. They now constitute a substantial item of company expense. They are fixed by a percentage levy of the gross receipts of the exchange revenue of the Company in the

particular city or town. The Company has no real control over the rate of levy or where these levies may next be imposed. At the time of hearing before the Commission, forty-six cities and towns imposed these levies, which, when related to local exchange revenue, ranged from .39 per cent to 7.28 per cent. Thirty other cities, towns and villages imposed municipal levies, but these were so low that when related to the lowest priced telephone service within the exchange would not produce a charge of one cent per month; and in ninety-four cities, towns and communities, no municipal levies were imposed.

In the past these municipal levies were reflected in the bills of every exchange customer in the State entirely without regard to whether or not the city or town in which that customer resided imposed any municipal levy. Thus the customer in City A, which imposed no municipal levy, paid the Company money to discharge in part the municipal levy of City B.

On this evidence the Commission reached the conclusion that the practice of the Company of collecting from all its exchange customers in this State money with which to pay these municipal levies imposed by only certain cities and towns, and with wide disparity of rate as between certain cities and towns, was an unjust and discriminatory practice.

Would a reasonably judging mind have necessarily reached a contrary decision? We think not.

Testing the matter by another approach, suppose but one city in the State imposed a municipal levy and that this

levy was five per cent of the Company's gross exchange revenue within the city and no other city or town in the State imposed any municipal levy and that the rates of the Company were such that every exchange customer in the State contributed money for the payment of this levy and the Commission found that this practice was unjust and discriminatory, could any reasonably judging mind say that the Commission must have reached a contrary conclusion?

As we perceive the argument of the City in relation to this question, it tacitly admits that there is at least *prima facie* discrimination in the practice of the Company in recovering from its customers on a state-wide basis money with which to pay municipal levies. But the City in effect asserts that the discrimination cannot be abolished for the reasons which it assigns.

It is first suggested that the Commission having previously approved state-wide rate schedules which included money for the payment of municipal levies, the approval is *res judicata* and cannot in this proceeding be disturbed. It would seem manifest to us that if the Commission now finds that a practice previously allowed is demonstrated to be unjust and discriminatory, it is not only the power but the duty of the Commission to correct the abuse as quickly as possible.

See:

Skinner & Eddy Corporation v. United States et al., 249 U. S. 557.

Then the City in effect seeks to avoid the discrimination under consideration by developing the proposition that

there are elements of discrimination in the state-wide rate schedules. The Company makes no contention that its basic rate schedules are free from all discrimination. Basic telephone rates are now and for many years in the past have been arranged on what is known as the state-wide theory of rate making. This system has been adopted by the regulatory commissions in almost all States for promulgating rates for telephone service. It has two basic concepts: First, that the rate for service shall be graduated according to the value of the service to the user; and, second, that the rates for telephone exchange service shall be graduated according to the number of telephones in use in each exchange, with the same rates applying in every exchange of approximately the same size. For example, all exchanges having four hundred to eight hundred telephones would have the same rates for the different classes of service. To the extent that one exchange in this classification might have just over four hundred telephones and another might have just under eight hundred telephones, it is, of course, obvious that there is some reasonable discrimination under this theory of rate making. Likewise it is reasonable to expect that although the rate for telephone service is not primarily based on the cost of service, nevertheless it may very well cost the Telephone Company more to furnish service to a user living five miles from the central office than it would to one living five blocks from such office inasmuch as a pair of wires is necessary to serve each single line and must run the entire distance from the central office to the user's premises.

The state-wide method of making telephone rates and occasionally rates of other utilities has been approved by all of the courts of last resort reviewing the question. Typical of these decisions are:

City of New York v. Feinberg et al., 109 N. Y. S. 2d 131, decided January 9, 1952;

People ex rel. P. U. C. v. Mountain States Tel. & Tel. Co., et al., 243 P. 2d 397, decided February 6, 1952;

Cumberland Tel. & Tel. Co. v. City of Memphis et al., 200 Fed. 657, at 660;

P. S. Gas Co. v. Board of PUC, 87 A. 651, at 654;

St. Louis and S. F. Ry. Co. v. Gill, 156 U. S. 649, at 665;

Michigan Bell Tel. Co. v. Odell, 45 Fed. 2d 180 at 181, and cases cited therein;

Board of Supervisors of Arlington County v. Commonwealth of Va. ex rel. C. & P. Co. of Va., 45 S. E. 2d 145.

However, the City does not attack the state-wide theory of rate making but contends that it objects to the departure therefrom with respect to franchise fees and taxes, especially in the absence of any evidence to show any reasonable basis in fact for that departure from established and approved practice.

The position of the Company in answer to the contentions of the City is this: There are concededly elements of reasonable discrimination in state-wide rate making. It is neither possible nor practical to remove all of these elements of discrimination. We have here under consideration

a particular item of Company expense, namely, municipal levies. The inclusion of money to pay these municipal levies in state-wide rates is an unjust and discriminatory practice. This is one practice which can be isolated, effectively dealt with, and abolished by the proposal under consideration. Manifestly, then, the injustice and discrimination which can readily be reached should be removed at once and to that extent the state-wide rate making practice bettered and improved.

In its Point numbered 3 the City contends in effect that the benefits of its franchise with the Company flow out to the users of telephone service throughout the State and that accordingly the Telephone customers state-wide should provide the money with which to pay the municipal levy of the City.

Consideration of this argument requires further examination of the taxing provisions of Ogden's franchise. The measure was patently a revenue raising imposition. It was expressly levied in lieu of all license, franchise, occupation and other similar taxes.

It was not pretended to be commensurate with any benefit or protection which the Company might receive because it provided that

"The Company shall pay to the City of Ogden upon the passage, approval and acceptance of this ordinance, an amount equal to one per cent (1%) of the local exchange revenues derived from telephones located within Ogden City limits."

The amount of free service which the Company was required to render was also graduated according to the population of the City.

The money which is derived from this revenue raising measure goes into the general funds of the City and is expended by the City for such municipal purposes as it sees fit.

The franchise features of these impositions are actually incidental and insignificant. This is illustrated by the fact that for some twenty-two years the Company had no franchise whatever in Salt Lake City but was taxed and continued to pay Salt Lake City an imposition measured by a percentage of its gross exchange revenue within the City (R. 181).

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